ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 7, 2011
8:13 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
COW TTEE CALENDAR

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 31(JUD)
"An Act relating to the counting of wite-in votes."

- MOVED HCS CSSB 31(STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 93
"An Act relating to special request specialty organization
regi stration plates; and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 31
SHORT TITLE: COUNTI NG OF WRI TE- I N VOTES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) THOVAS, FRENCH, MENARD, W ELECHOASKI

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/19/11 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) STA, JUD

01/ 25/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 25/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

01/ 25/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 27/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 27/ 11 (S Moved CSSB 31(STA) Qut of Conmmttee
01/27/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

01/28/11 (S STA RPT CS 5DP NEW Tl TLE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2011



01/ 28/ 11

01/31/ 11
01/31/ 11
01/31/ 11
02/ 02/ 11
02/ 02/ 11
02/ 02/ 11
02/ 04/ 11
02/ 04/ 11

02/ 14/ 11
02/ 14/ 11
02/ 16/ 11
02/ 16/ 11
04/ 05/ 11
04/ 05/ 11
04/ 06/ 11
04/ 06/ 11
04/ 07/ 11

BILL: SB 93

(S)

IIITIIITO

DP: W ELECHOWSKI , KOOKESH, PASKVAN,
MEYER, G ESSEL

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

Moved CSSB 31(JUD) Qut of Conmittee

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS 4DP  SAME TITLE

DP:  FRENCH, W ELECHOWSKI,  PASKVAN,
MCGUI RE

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON:  CSSB 31(JUD)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

STA, JUD

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

Schedul ed But Not Heard

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

<Bill Hearing Rescheduled to 4/8/11>
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: SPECI ALTY LI CENSE PLATES

SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 21/ 11
02/ 21/ 11
02/ 22/ 11
02/ 22/ 11
02/ 22/ 11
03/01/ 11
03/01/ 11
03/01/ 11
03/01/ 11
03/01/ 11
03/01/ 11
03/ 15/ 11
03/ 15/ 11
03/ 15/ 11
03/ 16/ 11
03/ 16/ 11
03/16/ 11
03/ 21/ 11
03/ 21/ 11
03/ 23/ 11
03/ 23/ 11
04/ 05/ 11

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

STATE AFFAI RS

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA, TRA

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA RPT 2DP 2NR

DP: W ELECHOWBKI , PASKVAN

NR: & ESSEL, MEYER

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved SB 93 Qut of Committee
M NUTE( STA)

TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved SB 93 Qut of Conmttee
M NUTE( TRA)

TRA RPT 3DP 2NR

DP: KOOKESH, MENARD, THQOVAS
NR: HUGE NS, EGAN

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSION: SB 93

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA, FIN

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

- 2- April 7, 2011



04/ 05/ 11 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
04/ 07/ 11 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR Bl LL THOVAS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 31 as joint prime sponsor.

BRYER HOPKI NS, St aff

Senat or Joe Thomas

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 31 on
behal f of Senator Thomas, joint prinme sponsor.

SARAH FELI X, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Labor and State Affairs Section

Civil Division (Juneau)

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded and overview of SB 31 and answered
guesti ons.

GAIL FENUM Al, Director

D vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on SB
31.

KARLA HART, Staff

Senator Bill W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 93 on behalf of the Senate
State Affairs Standing Conmttee, sponsor, on which Senator
W el echowski is chair.

STACY OATES, Admi nistrative Oficer

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on SB
93.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2011



ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:13:18 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
meeting to order at 8:13 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton,
P. WIlson, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representative G uenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.

SB  31- COUNTI NG OF WRI TE-I N VOTES

8:14: 54 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was CS FCOR
SENATE BILL NO 31(JUD), "An Act relating to the counting of
wite-in votes."

8:15:18 AM

SENATOR BILL THOVAS, Al aska State Legislature, introduced SB 31
as joint prime sponsor. He said the bill would clarify state
statute by wusing |anguage recommended in the Al aska Suprene
Court's MIller v. Treadwell decision - a decision supported by
the Al aska State Superior Court, the Federal District Court, and
the 2010 Ceneral Election review. He said the |[anguage is from
the federal Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act
(UOCAVA), which states explicitly that the director of the
Division of Elections will use the determnation of the voters'
intent as the guiding principle when counting and judging wite-
in votes. He said SB 31 incorporates the concept that the
courts have applied for the [ast 50 years.

SENATOR THOVAS stated that the goal of SB 31 is two-fold: to
clarify language in statute to ensure that in future elections
as many Alaska voters as possible are enfranchised; and to
clarify existing |anguage and strengthen the public's perception
of Al aska's denocratic process. The purpose of SB 31 is to put
into statute |anguage that the courts have already decided and
to ensure that mnor msspellings of nanmes on ballots are
counted as long as the Division of Elections can determ ne the
intent of the voter.

SENATOR THOVAS said the Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor has
expressed a desire for clarification regardi ng when soneone has
to register as a wite-in candidate; however, he said this is a
separate and nore conplex issue that he does not w sh to address
in SB 31.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2011



SENATOR THOVAS, in response to Chair Lynn, said he understands
that there is no silver bullet to address the problem but
hopefully voters will study the canpaign signs or panphlets in
order to spell a nane close enough to its accurate spelling to
be under st ood.

8:22: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 2, line 22,
whi ch read as foll ows:

(c) If the director determnes that the
requi renents of (a) of this section have been net, the
director shall establish the place and date for
counting those wite-in votes, and the director, or a
designee of the director, shall count all wite-in
bal | ot s under AS 15. 15. 360(d).

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if this would set up a situation in
which the director mght decide that the recount would be
transferred to another regional center.

8:22:55 AM

BRYER  HOPKI NS, Staff, Senator Joe Thonas, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, speaking on behalf of Senator Thomas, joint prine
sponsor, explained that all ballots are transferred to Juneau
for final wite-ballot counting.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would like to hear feedback from
the Division of Elections regarding the retransfer of ballots.

8:24:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON directed attention to |anguage on page
1, [lines 5-7], which read as foll ows:

(1) witing in the nane of a candidate
whose nane is printed on the ballot does not
invalidate a wite-in vote wunless the director
determ nes, on the basis of other evidence, that the
ballot was so marked for the purpose of identifying
the ballot".

MR. HOPKINS explained that "so marked for the purpose of
identifying the ballot"™ means that the person could go back

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2011



later and nmake a public records request and find his/her own
bal | ot .

8:26:09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there m ght be another reason
for invalidating a ballot.

MR HOPKINS deferred to Ms. Fenum ai .
8:27:20 AM

MR. HOPKINS referred to the historical election race of 2010,
which was won by wite-in candidate Lisa Mirkowski, the first
person to win a wite-in race for US. Senator since Strom
Thurnond in the 1950s. He echoed Senator Thonmas's statenent
regarding the support of the courts in enfranchising voters.
M. Hopkins directed attention to a one-page handout in the
commttee packet, which provides quotes from the 2010 U S
Senate race court findings significant to SB 31. He said the
courts have enphasized the inportance of determning voters
intent, and have stated that Al aska statute is vague in this
matter and, thus, open to various interpretations. He said
Li eutenant Governor Mead Treadwell, in an executive sunmary,
recommended anending Al aska statute to clarify the rules of
wite-in votes and to allow the director of the Division of
El ections to disregard mi sspellings or other mnor variations in
the form of the candidate's nane if the intention of the voter
can be ascertained, which would conform Alaska |law with recent
court rulings on voter intent. He relayed that the I|ieutenant
governor also recommended a new section be added to state
statute outlining the process for counting wite-in votes
currently set out in regulation.

8:30:13 AM

MR. HOPKINS, in response to Representative Keller, said the bil
sponsor considered various options regarding setting the
boundaries of the director of the D vision of Elections, and
then decided to stick with the court's recommendations. He said
the courts have said that having one person |ook at every
[wite-in] ballot would make the process objective. In response
to Chair Lynn, he said the counting of wite-in ballots is a
public process; each party is allowed one observer who has the
ability to challenge the decision of the director.

8:33:23 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2011



CHAIR LYNN remarked upon the difficult nature of determning
sonmeone else's intent.

8:34:35 AM

MR. HOPKINS, in response to Representative WIson, offered his
understanding that the process used to count wite-in ballots
during the aforenentioned 2010 U. S. Senate race is one that is
witten in regulations, and it is a process that is simlar to
that used by other states during a recount. He offered further
details, and he clarified that two election workers count the
ballots, but it is the sole job of the director of the division
to determne the intent of the voter for any wite-in votes that
have been questioned. In response to a question from
Representative Keller about statutory authority, he deferred to
Ms. Fenum ai, the division director, and to Ms. Felix of the
Departnent of Law.

8:39:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN directed attention to | anguage
pertaining to wite-in votes for governor and |ieutenant
gover nor. He said his understanding of that |anguage is that a

voter could "wite in the nane of the governor candi date and not
wite in the |ieutenant governor's nanme, and the vote would
still count.”

MR. HOPKINS said that is also his understanding. He expl ai ned
that followwng the primary election, the candidates for
| i eut enant governor and governor run on the same ticket.

8:40: 24 AM

MR. HOPKINS, in response to Representative G uenberg, offered
his wunderstanding that the sane rule would not apply in a
situation in which the voter was not able to spell the
gubernatorial candidate's nanme but did wite in the I|ieutenant
gover nor candi date's nane.

8:41:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opi ned that the sanme rule should apply
to both situations; if the |lieutenant governor running with the
governor can be counted with only the governor's name witten
in, then the candidate for governor should be counted when only
the name of the |ieutenant governor w th whom he/she is running

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2011



is witten in. He asked if the bill sponsor would consider an
amendnent to that effect.

8:43:40 AM

SENATOR THOMAS rem nded Representative Guenberg that this is
existing law, but said he would have no objection to such an
amendnent .

8:44:15 AM

MR. HOPKINS said SB 31 could prevent the type of outcry heard as
a result of the 2010 election fromrecurring and save the state
hundreds of thousands of dollars by reducing the potential of
future litigation.

8:45:15 AM

MR. HOPKINS stated that Section 1 of the proposed |egislation
amends AS 15.15.360 to address the counting of wite-in votes
and the determ nation of voter intent by the division director.
He noted that paragraphs (1)-(4) 1in AS 15.15.360(d) were
previ ously paragraphs (9)-(12) in AS 15.15.360(a); paragraph (5)
is added to AS 15.15.360(d) wunder SB 31. He related that
par agraphs (1)-(8) in AS 15.15.360(a) address the counting and
mar ki ng of standard ballots - not wite-in ballots.

8:49: 01 AM

MR. HOPKINS explained that Section 2 introduces into statute
| anguage that is currently in Regulation 6 AAC 25.085, regarding
standards for counting ballots and the date and tine for the
counting to occur. Subsections (1) and (2) address the counting
of wite-in ballots.

8:50:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN directed attention to page 2, line 18,
which refers to the "percentage necessary for a recount at the
state's cost under AS 15.20.450. He asked M. Hopkins to
clarify what that percentage is.

MR. HOPKINS said it is one half of one percent. |In response to
a followup question, he confirned that the percentage
requirenent relates to the tinme after which all the absentee
ballots and early ballots have been counted. In response to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2011



Representative WIson, he confirmed that all the |anguage in
Section 2 is new to statute.

8:52:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER suggested including the |anguage of 42
U S C 1973ff [in subsection (c) of Section 2] for the purpose
of clarity, rather than just l|isting the code. He asked for
details regardi ng the code.

MR. HOPKINS deferred to the Departnent of Law

8:53: 09 AM

CHAI R LYNN questioned whether there is any |anguage that could
be added to SB 31 to define intent.

MR. HOPKINS indicated that the best answer would be to keep the
recounting of wite-in ballots a public process.

8:54: 24 AM

MR. HOPKINS stated that the process described in Section 2 was
used successfully during the aforenmenti oned 2010 el ecti on.

8:55: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG returned to the issue of 42 U S C
1973ff, referenced in Section 2, subsection (d), and he
suggested that the subsection should read as follows: "This
section does not apply to the counting of federal wite-in
absentee ballots submtted under federal [Iaw " He expl ai ned

that U S. Congress could anend the code and then Al aska Statute
woul d have to be changed.

MR. HOPKINS indicated that the bill sponsor would be willing to
consider that change of |anguage after first hearing feedback
fromthe Departnent of Law.

8:57: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER opined that it 1is "appropriate for a
sovereign state to put guidelines on votes that are al so covered
by federal |aw "

8:57:41 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 7, 2011



MR. HOPKINS noted that the Ilieutenant governor had made one
ot her recomendation to elimnate the requirenent for a wite-in
candidate to file as an official wite-in candidate; however,
the bill sponsor decided not to include that recomrendation in
the bill in order to sinplify the bill by sticking wth the
recomrendati ons of the courts. He offered further details.

9:00: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if the bill sponsor decided not to
put |anguage in the bill that would nmake it illegal to solicit
candi dat es over the airwaves.

MR. HOPKINS asked Representative Petersen to clarify if he is
referring to sonmething that happened on the radio.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN [ nodded] .
9:01: 29 AM

SENATOR THOVAS said he did not consider that situation. He
stated that it seenms ridiculous for people to have the ability
to run for office when they would not even be able to serve if
el ect ed.

CHAIR LYNN nentioned freedom of speech and the encouragenent
candi dates may receive to run

9:02: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said it could be problematic if there is
no declaration of candidacy and there are two people in the
state with the nane of the wite-in candidate. He said he would
like to keep the bill the way it is.

9:03: 53 AM

MR. HOPKINS, in response to Representative Keller, confirnmed
that the lieutenant governor did not cite specific |anguage for
statute. In response to a question from Representative WI son,

he restated the purpose of Section 3.
9: 05: 26 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understand that there is no

| anguage in the bill that contradicts the Suprene Court's ruling
or its interpretation of Alaska' s current election |aw

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2011



SENATOR THOVAS confirnmed that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON related a conversation between [the
commttee] and the chief justice a couple years ago regarding

| egislative intent. He said, "It is a presunption that we do
not enact statute willy-nilly or just to duplicate what already
is current law." He said he wants it nade clear for the record

that by supporting SB 31, the conmttee would be verifying the
current interpretations of law, but would not be instituting any
change to the current interpretation of |aw In response to
Representative Keller, he enphasized that SB 31 would not change
"the existing way we do it."

9:07:31 AM

CHAIR LYNN remarked that what is currently in regulation would,
under SB 31, be put in statute; therefore, that is a change.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said that is the point he was going to
make.

9:09: 37 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after stating his support for SB 31, passed the
gavel to Vice Chair Keller.

9:10: 38 AM

SARAH FELI X, Assistant Attorney General, Labor and State Affairs
Section, Cvil Dvision (Juneau), Departnent of Law (DQ),
provi ded an overview of SB 31. Regarding the counting of wite-
in votes, she stated that SB 31 would codify the decision of the
Al aska Suprenme Court in the Mller v. Treadwell case. The
proposed legislation takes the |anguage of the court decision,
which is taken from federal |aw. She said the key language in
SB 31 is found on page 2, lines 6-8, which read as foll ows:

(5 in counting votes for a wite-in
candi dat e, t he di rector shal | di sregard any
abbreviation, msspelling, or other mnor variation in
the form of the name of a candidate if the intention
of the voter can be ascertai ned.

IVS. FELI X announced that she would respond to previous

guestions. She said AccuVote is used to count ballot votes, but
cannot [determi ne nanmes on] wite-in votes. Once the threshold

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2011



for wite-in votes is nmet - [as shown on page 2, lines 13-19] -
those wite-in votes are hand counted. The authority for that
procedure, which was used in the 2010 General Election, was set
out in AS 15.15.360, conbined with wite-in statute AS 15.15. 105
and regulation 6 A A C 25-085. She said DOL worked closely
wth the division to establish the process, which was validated
by the Al aska Suprene Court and the Federal District Court.

9:15: 32 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER asked where in statute the requirenent for
having a public process for wite-in vote <counting is.
Foll owi ng comments from Ms. Felix, he clarified that he would
like the citation.

M5. FELI X i ndi cated that she could provide the citation |ater.
9:17:52 AM

M5. FELIX, in response to a question from Representative
Petersen, confirnmed that the AccuVote mnmachine can only count
t hose votes where the voter has filled in the oval, which means
that if a voter wote in a nane of a candidate on the wite-in
line but did not fill in the oval next to that |line, then that
vote woul d not be count ed.

9:18:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited a reference regarding public
process in AS 15.15.350, [within subsection (a), paragraph (4)],
whi ch read as foll ows:

The election board, in hand-count precincts, shal
count the ballots in a manner that allows watchers to
see the ball ots when opened and read.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he does not see anything in state
law that would allow the public to observe the counting of
wite-in votes, which, he ventured, is what [Vice Chair Keller]
had in m nd.

[ VICE CHAI R KELLER] responded yes.

9:20: 29 AM

M5. FELIX pointed out that wunder AS 15.20.470 there is a
requi rement for public notice of recounts.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 7, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his understandi ng that the next
commttee of referral was the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee, and he suggested that the natter could be pursued
t here.

VI CE CHAI R KELLER concurr ed.
9:22: 53 AM

M5. FELI X next addressed the previously discussed issue of the
listing of 42 U S.C. 1973ff [on page 2, line 25]. She expl ai ned
that 42 U S.C. 1973ff is the overall section of UOCAVA and
including it nmakes it clear that the federal wite-in ballots
woul d be count ed.

9:24: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Felix if there is any other
section of federal |aw that should be included in SB 31.

M5. FELIX said she is not aware of any. She noted that the
| anguage regarding "abbreviation, msspelling, or other mnor
variation" is language from federal |law that has been used in
par agraph (5), on page 2, lines 6-8.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG enphasized the inportance of <citing
federal |law for the record.

M5. FELI X said the |anguage in paragraph (5) is from 42 USCS Sec
1973ff-2(c)(3).

9:27:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that since M. Fenum ai has
authority under existing law to pronulgate regul ati ons, she may
want to | ook to do so in conjunction with existing federal |aw.

9:28:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to |anguage on page 2,
line 23, regarding the establishnment of the place and date for
counting wite-in votes, and he asked if there would ever be a
situation in which the director of the D vision of Elections
woul d choose to hold the count in Nonme instead of in Juneau.

9: 28: 45 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 7, 2011



GAIL FENUM AI, Director, Division of Elections, Ofice of the
Li eutenant Governor, answered that she cannot inmagine that
happeni ng, because the ballots are sent to Juneau in a secure
fashion, following the counting at the precincts and the
counting of the ballots at the regional offices for "absentee in
guestion.”™ She explained that it would not be a good security
measure to ship ballots back and forth throughout the state for
recounts or wite-in vote counts. She related that the ballots
come to Juneau for the State Review Board to use during its
audit of the election and are kept in one secured, |ocked
facility.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned whether it would not be better
to establish in statute where the ballots wll be counted,
| eaving the date to the discretion of the director.

M5. FENUM Al responded that if the conmittee wants to name, in
statute, a specific location, it should be the place where the
ballots are shipped, which is in Juneau. In response to a
foll owup question, she said such a change should specify that
the location in Juneau is the director's office, which is where
the State Review Board convenes. She said she would not use the
term  "regional office," because that neans one of the
division's five sites throughout the state.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarification that Ms. Fenum a
is saying that the place should be the director's office so that
if that office changes location, it would still be clear where
the ballots would be sent. He explained that he wants to avoid
a debate about discretion.

M5. FENUM Al said she agrees but is currently at a loss for
wor di ng. She suggested the I|anguage could read, "at the
| ocation to where the ballots are shipped following the
el ection.™

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would like to know if the bill
sponsor finds that suggestions acceptabl e.

9:33: 35 AM

VI CE CHAIR KELLER said he wonders if the place that is specified
shoul d be "where nost of the people are.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he wants to preserve the security of
the system therefore, he suggested the |anguage could be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 7, 2011



changed to specify the place where the ballots are shipped
foll owing the el ection.

9:34: 54 AM

M5. FENUMAI cited regulation 6 AAC 25-200, pertaining to
recounts, which states that all recounts will be conducted at
the director's office or at another site in Juneau.

9:35: 21 AM
M5. FENUM AI, in response to a question from Representative
Pet ersen, explained that on election night, in the optical scan

precincts where the ballot tabulators are, if the oval is filled
in next to the line for a wite-in candidate, it triggers a vote
to go to the overall wite-in category. In the hand-count
precincts, those votes are also counted as a wite-in vote -
there is no individual identification as to whom those votes
bel ong. The determ nation as to whether the threshold set out
in statute is nmet is done post election.

9:36: 17 AM

M5. FENUM Al, regarding Representative Guenberg's previously
stated concern regarding the disparity in counting wite-in
votes for governor and |ieutenant governor based on which nane
has not been entered correctly, said she could foresee a problem
wi th anmendi ng that |anguage. She explained that the intent may
not be so clear. For exanple, she said a person nay wite in
t he name of soneone running for |ieutenant governor, but really
want that person as governor

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said a person has to register to run
for a particular office; therefore, he/she could not be counted
as a wite-in for another office.

M5. FENUM Al said this is uncharted territory that needs tine to
be consi der ed.

9: 38: 38 AM

M5. FENUM Al noted that the |lieutenant governor provided an
anendnent that would amend AS 15.25.105(c) so that a letter of
intent could be filed up to the day of the GCeneral Election.
Currently statute allows a letter of intent to be filed up to
five days before the el ection.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 7, 2011



VI CE CHAI R KELLER suggested the amendnment could be considered by
t he House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

9:40: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON restated his concern regarding the
conflict that could arise if one person filed as a wite-in
candi date and there was soneone else in the state with the sane
nane.

M5. FENUM Al responded that if it becanme a voluntary issue to
run as a wite-in candidate, there could potentially be sone
difficulties related to determning voter intent if there were
two people wth the sane nane. However, she clarified that the
i eutenant governor's proposal would be to change the filing
deadline fromfive days prior to the general election up through
the day of the General Election.

VI CE CHAIR KELLER offered his understanding that two topics were
brought up: one was regarding a letter of intent conceptual
anendnent and the other was "using just one |last nane.”" He said
both issues would be discussed by the House Judiciary Standing
Conmi ttee.

9:43: 03 AM

VI CE CHAIR KELLER, after ascertaining that there was no one el se
who wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:43: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopted Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
as foll ows:

Page 2, line 23:
Del ete "pl ace and"

Page 2, line 24, follow ng "votes":

I nsert "which shall occur at the place where the
bal | ots are physi cal |y shi pped fol |l owi ng t he
el ecti ons”

9:44:24 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

9:44: 43 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 7, 2011



SENATOR THOVAS said he does not oppose Conceptual Anendnent 1.
He suggested using the phrase, "an appropriate public place",
woul d al so work. He indicated that in the past [the counting of
wite-in ballots] has been a public event; however, he said
specifying that in statute is not a problem

9:45:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to anmend Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
to insert "public" between the words "at the" and "pl ace".

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would accept that as a friendly
amendnent .

9:46: 42 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER renoved his objection to Conceptual Amendnment
1, as anended. He asked if there was any further objection.
[ No further objection was stated, and Conceptual Amendnment 1, as
anended, was treated as adopted.]

9:46: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to report CSSB 31(JUD), as anended,
out of conmttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, HCS CSSB
31(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee.

SB  93-SPECI ALTY LI CENSE PLATES

9:47: 27 AM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER announced that the |ast order of business was
SENATE BILL NO 93, "An Act relating to special request
specialty organization registration plates; and providing for an
effective date.”

9:47: 46 AM

KARLA HART, Staff, Senator Bill Welechowski, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented SB 93 on behalf of the Senate State
Affairs St andi ng Conmi ttee, sponsor, on which Senat or
W el echowski is chair. She said specialty license plates are

sweeping the country, wth technological changes allow ng
efficient, economcal printing of designs on demand, and the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2011



proposed | egislation not only would address people's interest in

these license plates, but also the anmount of tine the
| egislature spends considering [requests for new specialized
pl ate designs]. She noted that currently about half of the
states allow admnistrative approval of specialty license
pl at es.

M5. HART related that which SB 93 would acconplish, as shown in
the |l ower portion of the one-page sponsor's statenent [included
in the conmttee packet], which read as follows [original
punct uati on provided]:

G ves the Division of Mdtor Vehicles authority to

devel op a procedure for adm nistrative review and
award of specialty license plates.

Requires DW to develop a standard tenplate so al

specialty plates will be easily readabl e and
recogni zabl e for |aw enforcenent.

Creates standard regul ati ons, fees and procedures
that will apply to all specialty license plates.

WIIl result in cost savings for the state as

adm ni strative responsibilities of confirmng
eligibility, collecting and accounting for funds for
the non-profit, and devel oping the |license plate
artwork and design are transferred to the sponsoring
organi zati on. DW processing of plate applications is
stream ined as the applications will be submtted in
bat ches by sponsoring organi zati ons.

| s revenue neutral. The $30/vehicle specialty

regi stration fee covers the cost of producing and
i ssuing the specialty plates.

V. HART said after researching other states’ progr ans,
Pennsyl vani a's program was selected as the nodel for SB 93. She
said DW supports the proposed legislation, and has told the
bill sponsor that it would have no problem getting regul ations
in place by the effective date. She enphasized that SB 93
neither would preclude the Ilegislature from passing future
license plate bills nor inpact any license plate bills that have
al ready passed.

9:52:31 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to |anguage on page 2,
line 6, of SB 93, which would require regulation providing that
the entity requesting the issuance of the plates "submt
registration fees for at Jleast 50 notor vehicles before
specialty registration plates will be issued'. He asked if that
nunmber coul d be changed to 10 and remain just as effective.

M5. HART answered yes. She said the nunbers vary w dely across
the country and partly are a function of state popul ation. She
said Pennsylvania's nodel started out at 300, dropped that
nunber to 50-100, and currently require a mninmm of only one
because the programis working so well and pays for itself.

9:53: 33 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER questioned whether specialty plates would be
used for canpai gn purposes, and he asked if that is a concern in
ot her st ates.

M5. HART responded that sone states have set in regulation and
others through statute that the theme of the plates should be
nonpol itical . She said she does not know if that s
specifically defined in SB 93 or whether candidates generally
run via their own nonprofit organizations.

VI CE CHAI R KELLER said he sees that as a potential problem
9:55: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that people likely would not opt
for a canpaign specialty license plate, since they would then be

stuck with that plate for a long tine.

VI CE CHAI R di sagreed.

9:55:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to |anguage on page
2, line 8, which read: "may not be offensive in purpose,
nature, activity, or nane". He expressed concern that

disallowing that which is "offensive" my infringe on First
Amendnent rights.

M5. HART, in response to Representative Guenberg, said SB 93
had not been referred to the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 7, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG related that a case having to do with
First Amendnment rights and New Hanpshire's license plate made it
to the U.S. Suprene Court.

9:57: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN questi oned whether the |anguage on page
2, line 8, is already a requirenment for specialized plates.

9:57: 30 AM

STACY QATES, Administrative Oficer, Division of Mtor Vehicles,
Departnment of Administration, indicated that the information
regarding profanity is, in part, in regulations. She said the
division is well aware of the court's decisions regarding free
speech and license plates. She said if soneone objects to a

decision by the division not to okay a |license plate design,
then a hearing procedure is followed. She said the division has
been dealing with this issue since the existence of personalized
pl ates, and she said she does not foresee any different process
woul d result under [SB 93].

9: 58: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would Ilike a copy of the
regulations and the statute upon which those regulations are
pr omul gat ed.

M5. OATES said she would procure that for the commttee.

M5. HART noted that there is one 9th Crcuit Court of Appeals
ruling regarding licenses plates, which supports freedom of
speech, and she said she would get a copy of that to the
comm ttee.

[ SB 93 was held over.]

10: 00: 12 AM

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 10:00
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 7, 2011



